
 

 

 
 
 

Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Anoka City Hall – Council Chambers 

 
May 19, 2016, 11:00 AM 

 
Agenda 

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Administrative Reports 

4.1.  Secretary 

4.1.1. Approval of the April 21, 2016, commission minutes. 

4.2. Treasurer 

4.2.1. March Financial Reports 

4.3. Executive Director 

5. General Business 

5.1. Audit Presentation 

5.2. Vehicle Safety Policy Manual 

6. Adjourn  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF  
APRIL 21, 2016 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 1 
 

Chair Heitkamp called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. at the Anoka City Hall. 
 
ROLL CALL– 2 
 

Commissioners present were: Carl Anderson, Anoka; Greg Lee, Anoka; Kurt 
Ulrich, Ramsey; Jim Dickinson, Andover; Julie Trude, Andover; Eric Johnson, 
Champlin; and Bret Heitkamp, Champlin. 
 
Commissioners absent and excused:  John LeTourneau, Ramsey. 
 
Others present included Karen George, Executive Director; Steve Ulrich, 
Technology Director; Karly Werner, Comcast Director of Government Affairs; 
and Peter Leatherman, Morris Leatherman Company. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – 3 
 

Motion was made by Johnson and seconded by Lee to approve the agenda as 
presented. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS – 4  
 

4.1  Secretary 
  

4.1.1.     Approval of meeting minutes from February 18, 2016 
 
Motion was made by Trude and seconded by Ulrich to approve the February 18, 
2016 minutes as presented. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Regular Session 
April 21, 2016 
Page 2    
 

4.1.2.     Approval of meeting minutes from March 3, 2016 Work 
Session 

 
Motion was made by Trude and seconded by Ulrich to approve the March 3, 
2016 work session minutes as presented. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
 4.2  Treasurer 
 
  4.2.1.     January and February Financial Reports 

    
Commissioner Dickinson stated that the organization is in good shape when 
looking at the annual budget.    

 
Motion was made by Ulrich and seconded by Trude to accept the January and 
February Financial Reports. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried 
 

 4.3   Executive Director 
 

Ms. George highlighted some aspects from the combined report from March and 
April.  She noted that the cargo van delivery has been delayed to May and 
advised of a new program targeted at the millennial group titled The Grid.  She 
stated that the transition to high definition channels has begun and the 
organization is working to create promotional materials that can educate 
customers on how to best view the programming.  She noted that channel 15 
would still be available in analog format as well as high definition.  She provided 
a brief summary of items included in the Minnesota Association of Community 
Telecommunications Administrators (MACTA) report.  She reported that the 
audit has been completed and will come before the Board for action at the May 
meeting.  She also shared some positive feedback that has been received from 
customers. 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked when the punch list for the website would be 
completed. 
 
Ms. George stated that the deadline has been extended for another three 
months to complete the punch list and provided more details on the items still to 
be completed. 
 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Regular Session 
April 21, 2016 
Page 3    
 

Commissioner Johnson asked if any progress has been made to include the 
programming on the guide with the transition to HD service. 
 
Ms. George stated that there has been a delay in the receipt of the pricing for 
the organization to be included on the guide and once she receives that she 
would know additional information.   
 
The Board accepted the report. 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS – 5  
 
 5.1  Subscriber Survey Presentation  
 

Ms. George introduced Peter Leatherman of the Morris Leatherman Company 
who will be presenting the executive summary of the survey results that the 
Board reviewed last month via work session. 
 
Peter Leatherman reviewed a summary of the survey results noting that 400 
random samples were taken of QCTV subscribers.  He reviewed the longevity of 
the cable subscribers, the rating of cable television service, experience with 
technical problems, value of cable television service, what was watched on the 
QCTV channels, how often the QCTV channels are watched by subscribers, 
overall viewership, use of the QCTV website and whether the website was used 
to watch City meetings or programing, the use of social media to gather 
government information, the primary source people use to gather information 
about QCTV, the level of information known about QCTV, the importance of City 
information by video, and demographics.   
 
Chair Heitkamp left the meeting at 11:28 a.m. 
 
Acting Chair Ulrich thanked Mr. Leatherman for his presentation. 
 
Commissioner Trude stated that there is a lot of interest focused on government 
meetings and asked if there should be additional programing based on the items 
that are discussed during those meetings. 
 
Mr. Leatherman stated that potentially that could be beneficial as he has found 
that some subscribers do not want to view the entire meeting and simply want to 
see the hot topics.   
 
Commissioner Trude asked and received confirmation that a program that 
highlights aspects of the City meetings would be well received.  She also asked 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Regular Session 
April 21, 2016 
Page 4    
 

if there would be a viewership level at which a program should be considered for 
discontinuation, such as ten percent. 
 
Mr. Leatherman replied that even at ten percent that is still one in ten people 
watching that show.  He stated that perhaps if a rating was falling near two 
percent it could be considered for discontinuation.  He provided additional 
information on the public safety programs, noting that very high viewership often 
indicates that people do not feel safe and therefore lower viewership is often a 
good thing, again reminding the Commission that one in ten people are still 
watching.   
 
Commissioner Johnson asked the biggest revelation of this survey. 
 
Mr. Leatherman replied that he was surprised to see that one in six cable 
subscribers indicating that they frequently watch a program on one of the QCTV 
channels, which is very high.  He explained that result means that there is a 
breath of programing that is meeting the interest level of people and encourage 
them to frequently watch. 
 
Commissioner Trude stated that people are watching and the Councilmembers 
are recognized in public from those people that watch the meetings. 

 
 5.2  Technology Audit Update 
 

Ms. George stated Karly Werner is present today from Comcast to address the 
Commission.  She stated the subscriber issues that were identified and 
discussed were included in the report and have been addressed and corrected.  
She stated that she would recommend continued testing of the IP signal noting 
that staff will be testing the IP signal from different locations in the communities. 
 
Karly Werner stated that the completed spreadsheet has been provided 
following the technical audit.  She stated that Comcast will continue to work with 
QCTV staff regarding the I-Net and the possibilities for the future.  She stated 
that she was pleased to hear the results from the survey, which shows the high 
satisfaction of the customers and viewership in this area.  She advised that 
Comcast has taken into account comments that they have received from 
customers to determine what could be done to increase customer satisfaction.  
She noted that they have recently redesigned the bills for Comcast customers, 
which has begun to roll out this month and will continue next month.  She 
reported that Comcast is in the process of hiring 400 customer care agents for 
the Saint Paul call center which will also increase the customer satisfaction.  She 
stated that there are thousands of Xfinity Wi-Fi hotspots in the Twin Cities and 
will continue to add more 1,700 more in the area.  She stated that they just 
announced the Xfinity TV partner program the previous day, which would add 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Regular Session 
April 21, 2016 
Page 5    
 

the Xfinity app to smart televisions and other devices, such as Roku, and would 
allow Xfinity customers to access their cable services without a set top box. 
 
Commissioner Trude thanked Ms. Werner for her report.  She stated that she 
loves the Xfinity hotspots and uses them frequency.  She noted that the survey 
results show the increased customer service of Comcast.  She recounted a 
positive experience she has recently had with a technician that visited her home. 
 
Acting Chair Ulrich echoed the comments of Commissioner Trude and noted that 
the enhancements are making a difference. 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked if there is a location where you can go to see the 
Xfinity hotspots. 
 
Ms. Werner replied that there is an Xfinity hotspot app that will identify hotspots 
in the area and noted that there is also a map on the Xfinity website. 
 
Commissioner Anderson left the meeting. 
 
Motion was made by Dickinson and seconded by Trude to accept the subscriber 
network report and direct staff to test IP signal delivery option for remote truck 
shoots and to provide an update of IP signal delivery test at a future meeting. 
 
5 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
ADJOURN – 6  
 

Time of adjournment 11:48 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,    Reviewed for approval, 
 
_____________________________            ________________________________ 
Amanda Staple     Karen George 
Recording Secretary    Executive Director 
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts - QCTV 1,598,262.43

- PayPay acct 429.66

- US Bank Reserve 5,000.00

- Petty Cash 250.00

      Accounts Receivable 0.00

      Other current assets 0.00

   Total Current Assets $                  1,603,942.09

   Fixed Assets 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $                  1,603,942.09

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable 23,951.69

         Other Current Liabilities 31.19

      Total Current Liabilities $                      23,982.88

   Equity 1,579,959.21
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $                  1,603,942.09

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Balance Sheet Summary

As of March 31, 2016



Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget
Income

   Duplication Revenue 262.05 208.00 54.05 125.99% 410.95 2,500.00 (2,089.05) 16.44%

   Equipment Grant 0.00 0.00 55,870.85 0.00 55,870.85 

   Franchise Fees 72,854.00 (72,854.00) 0.00% 0.00 874,248.00 (874,248.00) 0.00%

   Interest Income 106.62 8.00 98.62 1332.75% 295.90 100.00 195.90 295.90%

   PEG Fee 36,427.00 (36,427.00) 0.00% 0.00 437,125.00 (437,125.00) 0.00%

Total Income 368.67 109,497.00 (109,128.33) 0.34% 56,577.70 1,313,973.00 (1,257,395.30) 4.31%

Gross Profit 368.67 109,497.00 (109,128.33) 0.34% 56,577.70 1,313,973.00 (1,257,395.30) 4.31%

Expenses

   Accounting / HR Services 1,186.92 1,166.00 20.92 101.79% 3,234.82 14,000.00 (10,765.18) 23.11%

   Ads/Promos/Sponsorships 1,915.00 570.00 1,345.00 335.96% 2,565.00 6,850.00 (4,285.00) 37.45%

   Andover Capital Equipment 500.00 (500.00) 0.00% 0.00 6,000.00 (6,000.00) 0.00%

   Announcers Fees 115.00 833.00 (718.00) 13.81% 2,215.00 10,000.00 (7,785.00) 22.15%

   Anoka Capital Equipment 155.94 500.00 (344.06) 31.19% 467.82 6,000.00 (5,532.18) 7.80%

   Audit 1,125.00 (1,125.00) 0.00% 0.00 13,500.00 (13,500.00) 0.00%

   Bank Fees / CC Fees 41.00 (41.00) 0.00% 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00%

   Brand Apparel 166.00 (166.00) 0.00% 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.00%

   Building - Cleaning 535.63 525.00 10.63 102.02% 1,468.11 6,300.00 (4,831.89) 23.30%

   Building - Insurance 208.00 (208.00) 0.00% 1,370.00 2,500.00 (1,130.00) 54.80%

   Building - Maintenance 293.81 583.00 (289.19) 50.40% 670.64 7,000.00 (6,329.36) 9.58%

   Building - Supplies 138.63 166.00 (27.37) 83.51% 496.25 2,000.00 (1,503.75) 24.81%

   Car Allowance 250.00 250.00 0.00 100.00% 750.00 3,000.00 (2,250.00) 25.00%

   Cell Phone - Allowance 515.00 555.00 (40.00) 92.79% 1,405.00 6,660.00 (5,255.00) 21.10%

   Champlin Capital Equipment 84.90 500.00 (415.10) 16.98% 254.70 6,000.00 (5,745.30) 4.25%

   City Sewer & Water 85.43 216.00 (130.57) 39.55% 284.37 2,600.00 (2,315.63) 10.94%

   Commission Expense 600.00 600.00 0.00 100.00% 600.00 7,200.00 (6,600.00) 8.33%

   Consulting Services 7,250.00 3,166.00 4,084.00 229.00% 9,250.00 38,000.00 (28,750.00) 24.34%

   Contingency Fund 2,057.00 (2,057.00) 0.00% 0.00 24,690.00 (24,690.00) 0.00%

   Duplication Expenses 83.00 (83.00) 0.00% 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Electric Service 1,018.50 1,596.00 (577.50) 63.82% 2,915.44 19,152.00 (16,236.56) 15.22%

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2016 - FY16 P&L 

January - December 2016

Mar 2016 YTD



Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2016 - FY16 P&L 

January - December 2016

Mar 2016 YTD

   Emp / Comm Appreciation 208.00 (208.00) 0.00% 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   Equip/Repair/Supply/Software 3,019.58 3,817.00 (797.42) 79.11% 8,711.65 45,812.00 (37,100.35) 19.02%

   Federal Unempl Expense 97.55 62.00 35.55 157.34% 385.18 750.00 (364.82) 51.36%

   Health Insurance 5,453.86 5,814.00 (360.14) 93.81% 16,004.43 69,768.00 (53,763.57) 22.94%

   Insurance - Deductibles 41.00 (41.00) 0.00% 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00%

   Insurance - Liability / Bonds 500.00 (500.00) 0.00% 3,717.00 6,000.00 (2,283.00) 61.95%

   Lawn Service 375.00 (375.00) 0.00% 0.00 4,500.00 (4,500.00) 0.00%

   Legal Fees 1,298.69 2,500.00 (1,201.31) 51.95% 3,115.09 30,000.00 (26,884.91) 10.38%

   Legislative Lobbying 161.00 (161.00) 0.00% 1,940.00 1,940.00 0.00 100.00%

   Licenses and Permits 83.00 (83.00) 0.00% 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Meals 83.00 (83.00) 0.00% 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Memberships - NATOA / Others 460.00 (460.00) 0.00% 4,770.00 5,520.00 (750.00) 86.41%

   Mileage 1,074.77 600.00 474.77 179.13% 1,565.72 7,200.00 (5,634.28) 21.75%

   Miscellaneous Expenses 83.00 (83.00) 0.00% 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Natural Gas 339.82 316.00 23.82 107.54% 1,061.79 3,800.00 (2,738.21) 27.94%

   Office Supplies / Equipment 1,200.57 416.00 784.57 288.60% 2,123.82 5,000.00 (2,876.18) 42.48%

   Parking Lot Maintenance 266.00 (266.00) 0.00% 0.00 3,200.00 (3,200.00) 0.00%

   Payroll Expenses (ADP/HSA) 592.45 491.00 101.45 120.66% 1,279.10 5,900.00 (4,620.90) 21.68%

   PERA 2,875.76 3,248.00 (372.24) 88.54% 8,142.81 38,982.00 (30,839.19) 20.89%

   Postage 82.91 108.00 (25.09) 76.77% 115.92 1,300.00 (1,184.08) 8.92%

   Printing / Copy Services 83.00 (83.00) 0.00% 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Professional Development 651.00 1,416.00 (765.00) 45.97% 1,408.62 17,000.00 (15,591.38) 8.29%

   Publications 41.00 (41.00) 0.00% 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00%

   Ramsey Capital Equipment 129.08 500.00 (370.92) 25.82% 387.24 6,000.00 (5,612.76) 6.45%

   Sales Tax 41.00 (41.00) 0.00% 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00%

   Secretary Services 169.50 249.00 (79.50) 68.07% 441.50 2,992.00 (2,550.50) 14.76%

   Snow Plowing Service 375.00 (375.00) 0.00% 1,016.25 4,500.00 (3,483.75) 22.58%

   SS/Medicare Expense 3,074.92 3,728.00 (653.08) 82.48% 7,518.75 44,747.00 (37,228.25) 16.80%

   State Unemploy Exp 208.00 (208.00) 0.00% 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   STD / LTD / Life Insurance 472.73 626.00 (153.27) 75.52% 1,191.33 7,520.00 (6,328.67) 15.84%



Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2016 - FY16 P&L 

January - December 2016

Mar 2016 YTD

   Studio Sets 583.00 (583.00) 0.00% 0.00 7,000.00 (7,000.00) 0.00%

   Subscription Services 243.19 1,334.00 (1,090.81) 18.23% 8,358.78 16,017.00 (7,658.22) 52.19%

   Temp Staff Services 208.00 (208.00) 0.00% 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   Vehicle - Equipment / Repair 833.00 (833.00) 0.00% 530.43 10,000.00 (9,469.57) 5.30%

   Vehicle - Insurance 291.00 (291.00) 0.00% 1,759.00 3,500.00 (1,741.00) 50.26%

   Vehicle - Maintenance / Gas 206.75 666.00 (459.25) 31.04% 684.97 8,000.00 (7,315.03) 8.56%

   Wages - Full-time 36,227.60 38,748.00 (2,520.40) 93.50% 87,557.62 464,977.00 (377,419.38) 18.83%

   Wages - Part-time 4,034.50 9,993.00 (5,958.50) 40.37% 11,191.83 119,922.00 (108,730.17) 9.33%

   Waste Removal 85.97 100.00 (14.03) 85.97% 257.91 1,200.00 (942.09) 21.49%

   Web / VOD / Int / CaTV / Phone 847.15 1,652.00 (804.85) 51.28% 2,329.02 19,830.00 (17,500.98) 11.74%

   Work Comp Insurance 191.00 (191.00) 0.00% 0.00 2,300.00 (2,300.00) 0.00%

Total Expenses 76,323.11 96,904.00 (20,580.89) 78.76% 205,512.91 1,163,129.00 (957,616.09) 17.67%

Revenues greater (less) than Expenditures (75,954.44) 12,593.00 (88,547.44) -603.15% (148,935.21) 150,844.00 (299,779.21) -98.73%

   ZCIP - Network Servers 2,842.80 2,842.80 

   ZCIP - Truck 8,156.39 9,156.39 

10,999.19 11,999.19

Friday, Apr 22, 2016 09:17:24 AM PDT GMT-5 - Accrual Basis











QCCCC Agenda Item  

4.3 Executive Director’s Report 

 

May 12, 2016 

To:  Commissioners  

From: Karen George, Executive Director  

Subject:  Executive Director’s Report 
 

Century Link negotiations  
CenturyLink has been working on the March 25 draft. Additional negotiation 
sessions have been scheduled for late May. CenturyLink technicians have installed 
video signal equipment in the QCTV playback room in preparation for delivering 
PEG channel signals once the contract is approved. The commission will be updated 
on channel designation in the May 19 programming work session. 
 
Replacement of cargo van 
Expected deliver on May 18. 
 
Comcast HD channel launched April 4 
The QCTV Community Channel (Comcast Channel 15) will be the first to transmit 
programming in High Definition. The HD channel launched April 4. The HD channel 
designation for Comcast customers will be HD859. Comcast technicians worked 
with QCTV staff to correct channel mapping issues related to the HD channel launch. 
Issues resolved. Staff continues to work on activating the electronic program guide 
(EPG) with ROVI, the third-party provider of the service for Comcast.  
 
Technical audit update 
Comcast resolved the subscriber network open items and the commission closed 
out that section of the technical audit at the April meeting. Comcast and QCTV staff 
are working over the coming months on testing the PEG signal delivery from truck 
shoots using a modem provided by Comcast.  
 
Legislative Update 
Attached to this report is the MACTA legislative weekly update for April 8. 
 

SF2249/HF2387 
MACTA provided a letter of support for SF2249/HF2387. This bill would expedite 
the reinstatement of tax exemption status for joint powers organizations effective 



January 1, 2016 rather than January 1, 2017. No updates to report – continue to 
monitor. 
 
SF736/HF1066 
Although this proposed legislation mentions CenturyLink, it is the voice services, 
not television services that are the target of competitive market regulation. 
Update: House passed. 

 
FCC Notice of Inquiry for Promoting Diverse and Independent Sources of Video 
ACM is active in the FCC proceeding  (FCC 16-41) regarding protection of PEG video 
programmers such as QCTV. This NOI is looking into cable tv operator practices in 
making programming information available to subscribers. PEG organizations have 
long been requesting to be listed on the EPG (electronic program guide), provide 
VOD/DVR services for PEG programs, and SD/HD channel offerings/quality signal 
transmission. The links below catalog the comments and letters. 
 
http://www.allcommunitymedia.org/wp-content/uploads/ACM-ACD-Comments-
in-DN-16-41.pdf 
 
http://www.allcommunitymedia.org/wp-content/uploads/Appendices-A-B.pdf 
 
NATOA and MACTA have also submitted comments and are enclosed with this 
report. 
 
2015 Audit in process 
Staff has worked with Redpath for onsite audit work and provided follow-up 
information as requested. The audit checkout meeting was conducted April 25. The 
2015 audit is scheduled for commission action on May 19. 
 
Insurance claim 
QCTV has opened an insurance claim for the damage to a camera and related 
equipment during a truck shoot. The League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust is 
working with staff and Alpha Video to estimate repair costs. Staff has secured rental 
of camera gear from CTN (City of Coon Rapids) until repairs/replacement can be 
completed. 
 
Web site  
The web site basic features are functioning. A contractor familiar with WatchGuard 
servers and software assisted staff in configuring the server to resolve issues related 
to live channel viewing via the web site. Staff continues to work with the vendor for 
resolution of other outstanding items on the punch list.  
 
Closed Captioning 
The FCC and Department of Justice have each taken up the regulation of closed 
captioning as it applies to local community television organizations such as QCTV. 
Commission staff has been monitoring potential impact on future operations. The 

http://www.allcommunitymedia.org/wp-content/uploads/ACM-ACD-Comments-in-DN-16-41.pdf
http://www.allcommunitymedia.org/wp-content/uploads/ACM-ACD-Comments-in-DN-16-41.pdf
http://www.allcommunitymedia.org/wp-content/uploads/Appendices-A-B.pdf


issue is complicated by two federal agencies interpreting requirements, and the 
impact on live video coverage, playback, and web streaming. Our national 
organizations NATOA and ACM are providing testimony at hearings and filing briefs 
on our behalf. MACTA will be sponsoring a workshop on this topic at the June 9 
conference in St. Paul. Staff will continue to monitor. 
 
Comcast rate notice 
Enclosed with this monthly report is communication from Comcast regarding rate 
increases for services. 
 
Monthly reports 
Attached to this agenda item are the operations and technology updates for April 
and the April statistical reports.  
 
Customer comments 
QCTV Staffer Jared Boyer reported: 
“Hi Everyone, 
 Just wanted to share with you a compliment that we received the other day at our 
truck shoot. 
  
Nick and I were driving through the Andover High School parking lot when a lady 
drove by and flagged me down. She said she was a lunch lady at the school and that 
last week she was able to watch a Lacrosse and Baseball game on our channel with her 
two young boys and they enjoyed our broadcast. She said that we do an awesome job 
and to keep up the good work! 
  
Thank you to everyone who has had a part on making our productions happen! So take 
a moment and pat yourself on the back, unless you like high fives, then I’ll gladly give 
you one!” 
 
Action Requested: None. 



 

 
800 NICOLLET MALL  # SUITE 2600  #  MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA  55402-7035 

TELEPHONE:  612-338-2525  #  FACSIMILE:  612-339-2386 

MCGRANN 
SHEA 

 CARNIVAL 
STRAUGHN 

&  LAMB 
CHARTERED 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
From: Sarah Psick and Joe Bagnoli 
 
Date: May 6, 2016 
 
Re: Capitol Update Report 
              
 

MACTA Legislative Update 
 
Sales Tax Exemption for Joint Powers Boards:  The Senate Tax committee will 
release their omnibus tax bill on Monday next week.  The Senate has set a budget 
target of $300 million for tax cuts and other relief.  MACTA supports legislation, SF 
2249/HF 2387, to accelerate the implementation date for sales tax exemption on 
purchases made by joint powers boards.  Legislation has been introduced to exempt 
these purchases effective January 1, 2016, providing a refund mechanism for 
purchases made in 2016.  The Department of Revenue has estimated the cost of this 
bill is $20 million.  We will be watching for this bill to be included in the Senate omnibus 
tax bill.   
 
Telephone Regulation (HF 1066):  Also known as the MTA/CenturyLink bill, this bill 
establishes a competitive market criteria that telephone service must meet in a local 
exchange area in order to receive approval from the Minnesota Public Utilities 
Commission for a lighter regulatory burden.  The bill was amended to clarify that an 
ILEC is only allowed to petition to have its residential voice services and business voice 
services to customers subscribing to three or fewer business lines regulated in the bill.  
The inclusion of the work “voice” was added to allay the concerns of MACTA.  Also, the 
bill explicitly indicates that nothing in the new law would restrict, expand, modify or 
affect “ the rights of any entity, or the authority of … local government authorities, with 
respect to the use and regulation of public rights-of-way under section 237.162 and 
237.163.”  This bill has been negotiated and debated for several years, at this time, 
agreement has been reached with the parties involved and the bill passed the House by 
a vote of 122-6.  Here is a link to the bill as passed by the House: 
http://wdoc.house.leg.state.mn.us/leg/LS89/HF1066.2.pdf 
 
Broadband Funding and VoIP Regulation:  The omnibus supplemental budget bill 
contains funding for broadband development grants and the House bill contains 
language relating to VoIP regulation.  There was no activity on these issues this week, 

http://wdoc.house.leg.state.mn.us/leg/LS89/HF1066.2.pdf


May 6, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

but a conference committee has been appointed to work out the differences between 
the House and Senate positions.  (See budget update below.)  Here is a link to the 
“side-by-side” document showing the differences between the House and Senate in 
broadband funding and policy language:   
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/side_by_sides/sbs_document.php/sbs_broadband.pdf?id=1
283 
 
 

General Legislative Update 
 
With slightly more than two weeks remaining in the 2016 legislative session, it is a 
relatively quiet Friday at the Capitol.  Only two committees are meeting in the Senate, 
the transportation conference committee is meeting, and neither the House nor Senate 
are meeting in Floor sessions.  While there was activity on the major legislative issues 
this past week, it would be hard to say progress was made on those issues.  So, we 
head into the final two weeks of session with much left on the “to do” list.   

 
Bonding:  On Monday, the Senate Capital Investment committee rolled out a $1.5 
billion bonding bill which includes projects in the following categories:  $390 million for 
transportation;  $362 million for education;  $282 million for water infrastructure;  $202 
million for public safety;  $181 million for parks and recreation;  $90 million for housing;  
$92 million for human services; plus many local community projects.  The bill was 
brought to the Senate Floor on Thursday for debate and passage.  However, the bill 
failed to gain the necessary 3/5th supermajority vote needed to pass bonding bills which 
incur state debt.  The bill failed on a 40-26 vote with all members of the DFL majority 
voting yes together with one Republican.  All other minority party Republicans voted no 
on the bill.  Following the vote, Senate Republicans stated they objected to the overall 
size of the bill, $1.5 billion, and hope to work with the Senate DFL majority to craft a bill 
which will pass the Senate.  In the House, a budget target has been adopted which 
allows a $600 million bonding bill.  To date, the House Republican majority has not put 
out their bonding bill in committee.  The last election year when a bonding bill was not 
passed was 2004, it is very possible this session will end without passage of a bonding 
bill.   
 
Budget:  The supplement budget roadmap was laid out this week with the appointment 
of conference committee members.  The Senate had passed one supplemental budget 
bill and the House had passed three bills; the budget negotiations will be undertaken by 
one conference committee.  The conference committee is expected to hold its first 
meeting on Monday to walk through the differences between the House and Senate 
bills.  Negotiations on funding differences will be on hold until the Governor, Speaker of 
the House and Senate Majority Leader agree on overall budget targets.  Following are 
the conference committee members for HF 2749, Supplemental Budget Bill: 
 
 Senator Dick Cohen, DFL/St. Paul 
 Senator Chuck Wiger, DFL/Maplewood 
 Senator Tony Lourey, DFL/Kerrick 
 Senator Tom Saxhaug, DFL/Grand Rapids 
 Senator Michelle Fischbach, GOP/Paynesville 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/side_by_sides/sbs_document.php/sbs_broadband.pdf?id=1283
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/side_by_sides/sbs_document.php/sbs_broadband.pdf?id=1283


May 6, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

 
 Representative Jim Knoblach, GOP/St. Cloud 
 Representative Jenifer Loon, GOP/Eden Prairie 
 Representative Matt Dean, GOP/Dellwood 
 Representative Pat Garofalo, GOP/Farmington 
 Representative Denny McNamara, GOP/Hastings.   
 
The supplemental budget side-by-sides can be found at this link: 
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/side_by_sides/ 
 
Transportation Funding:  The transportation funding conference committee, HF 4, met 
a couple of times this past week.  The committee took testimony on several policy 
initiative differences between the House and Senate, reviewed the differences in 
funding proposals and other issues.  On Friday, the Senate DFL presented an offer to 
the conference committee which provides a phased in gas tax over three years (5-
cents, 5-cents, 2-cents); an increase of 1.5% for license tab fees with an increase for 
late payment of license tab fees; $1 billion in trunk highway bonding over 10-years; 
increase the metro area sales tax for transit to ¾ cents; an increase to greater 
Minnesota transit; provides flexibility in the metro sales tax for metro county roads, 
funding for municipal roads through a surcharge on title transfers and vehicle 
registrations; funding for safe routes to schools, funding for metro area bikeways and 
funding for highways on tribal lands.  Overall, the House and Senate are close in the 
amount of funds raised and dedicated to transportation over the next ten years.  
However, the House Republicans remains very opposed to a gas tax increase given the 
current budget surplus.  The House indicated they will provide a counter-offer using 
those surplus funds.  
 
Next Week:  On Monday, the Senate Tax committee will release their omnibus tax bill 
for the 2016 session.  The Senate has set a $300 million budget target for tax cuts and 
programs. The bill will be heard in committee, sent to the Senate Floor and is expected 
to be voted on by the middle of the week.  Also next week, the Senate Finance 
committee and House Ways and Means committee will hold a joint meeting to hear a 
presentation from the National Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL) regarding 
setting budget targets and how that is done in other states.  Setting joint budget targets 
with divided government between two political parties has become more and more 
difficult in today’s political environment.  This has led to special sessions, government 
shut downs, and unresolved work year after year.  On Monday, there will be two weeks 
remaining in the legislative session, tick tock, tick tock ….  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
838323.DOCX 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/side_by_sides/


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 1 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

 

*  Note:  The tracking list  is arranged with the bills introduced in 2016 or acted upon in 2016 first.    Following the 2016 bills, is a list of bills 
introduced in 2015 and action taken on them  in 2015.   All bills that were not defeated or enacted into law may still be acted upon in 2016. 
 

 
2016 REGULAR SESSION BILLS 

 
1 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 

 
APPROPRIATES $100 MILLION FOR 
BROADBAND GRANTS FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND AND REDEFINES 
SPEEDS FOR UNDERSERVED AND 
UNSERVED AREAS 
 

 
 S.F. No. 2447 - Senators Schmit, 
Tomassoni, Sparks, Koenen and 
Ruud introduced  

 

  
Senate:  3/21/16 – Bill heard  in 
Senate Jobs, Agriculture and Rural 
Development committee.  Passed to 
Senate Finance committee.  

2 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
SETS BROADBAND SPEED GOALS FOR 
DOWNLOADING AND UPLOADING DATA 

 
S.F. No. 2448 - Senators Schmit, 
Tomassoni, Koenen, Eken and 
Ruud introduced 
 

  
Senate:  3/21/16 – Bill heard  in 
Senate Jobs, Agriculture and Rural 
Development committee. Passed to 
Senate Floor.  
 
Senate:  3/23/16 – Second Reading. 
 

3 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
MUNICIPAL SALES TAX EXEMPTION – 
ACCELERATES EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
S.F. No. 2249 - Senator Rest 
introduced 
 

 

H. F. 2387 - Freiberg 

introduced    

 
Senate:  3/16/16  - Bill heard in Tax 
Reform Committee.   MACTA supplied 
letter of support.   Laid over for future 
consideration. 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF2447
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF2448
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF2249
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2387&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 2 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

  
House:  3/23/16 – Bill heard in House 
Taxes Committee.  MACTA letter of 
support distributed.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in an omnibus tax 
bill.  
 

4 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROPRIATES $30 MILLION FOR 
BROADBAND GRANTS USING BOND 
PROCEEDS 

 
S.F. No. 2294 - Senators Dahms, 

Senjem, Rosen, Koenen and 
Weber introduced— 
 

 

  

5 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
BROADBAND GRANTS AND REQUIRING 
OFFICE OF BROADBAND TO CREATE 
AND PUBLISH GRANT CRITERIA 

  

H. F. 2381 - Baker and 

Kresha introduced 

 

 
House:   3/17/16 – Bill heard in House 
Greater Minnesota Job Growth Policy 
committee and amended.  MACTA 
joined other organizations in letter of 
support for broadband funding.  
Passed to House Job Growth Policy 
and Finance committee.  
 
House:  3/23/16 – Bill heard in House 
Job Growth and Energy Affordability 
Policy & Finance Committee.  Laid 
over for further consideration and 
possible inclusion in omnibus budget 
bill.  

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF2294
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2381&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 3 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 

 
EXEMPTING INTERNET MACHINERY 
EQUIPMENT FROM SALES TAX 

 H. F. 2461 - Quam, 

Kresha, Drazkowski, 

Baker and Pugh 

introduced 

 
House:  3/9/16 – Hearing in House 
Taxes committee.  Laid over for 
possible action at a later date.  

7 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
MODIFYING THE BORDER-TO-BORDER 
BROADBAND GRANT PROGRAM AND 
MAKES A BLANK APPROPRIATON OF 
FUNDS TO THE PROGRAM 
 
 

   

H. F. 3268, Simonson 

introduced 

 

8 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROPRIATING BOND PROCEEDS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF FIBER-OPTIC 
CABLE IN DAKOTA COUNTY 
 
 

 

 
S.F. No. 3068 - Sieben 

 

H. F. 3506 – Aitkin 

 

9 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
PROVIDING FOR NOTICE, HEARING, AND 
REVERSE REFERENDUM ON WHETHER 
A MUNICIPALITY MAY USE PUBLIC 
UTILITY LICENSE, PERMIT, RIGHTS, OR 
FRANCHISE FEES TO RAISE REVENUE 

 
 
S.F. No. 3413 - Gazelka 

 

H. F. 3470 - Vogel 

 
House:  3/30/15 – Hearing in House 
Government Operations & Elections 
Policy committee.  Passed to House 
Taxes Committee.  The bill does not 
impact cable franchise fees.   

http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2461&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF3268&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF3068
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF3506&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF3413
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF3470&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 4 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

 
10 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
MTA / CENTURY LINK BILL:  
COMPETITIVE MARKET REGULATION 
FOR LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS 
 

 
S.F. No. 736– Sparks; Dahms; 
Koenen and Ruud   
 

 
H. F. 1066– Kresha. 

 

 
Bill as Passed from House Floor  

 

 
House:  3/18/15 - Heard in House 
Commerce, passed to House Floor. 
 
5/516 – Amended on House Floor.  
Passed as Amended 122-6. 
 
Senate:  3/25/15 - Heard in Senate 
Jobs, Agriculture & Rural Dev 
committee; passed to Senate Finance 
committee 
 
NOTE:  SF 895 (VoIP bill) was 
amended into SF 736. 
 
4/28/15 - Heard in the Senate 
Environment, Economic Development 
& Agriculture Finance division.   
Passed to the Senate Floor.  
 
At end of 2015 session, the bill was 
returned to the Senate Jobs 
Committee. 
 
4/6/16 – Heard in Senate Jobs, 
Agriculture and Rural Development 
committee; VOIP language deleted 
from the bill.  Passed to Senate Floor.  
 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF736
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1066&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=HF1066&version=2&session=ls89&session_year=2015&session_number=0&format=pdf


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 5 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

 

11 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET BILLS  
 
* EACH BODY HAS A FINANCE BILL 
THAT INCLUDES FINANCE 
PROVISIONS BUT ALSO INCLUDES 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO 
BROADBAND AND 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
 

 
S.F. No. 2356 - Cohen / 
H. F. 2749 - Knoblach  
 
Broadband Article 5: 
 
 
 

 
H. F. 3931 - Garofalo  
 
 
 
 
Line 59.6  - Broadband 
Funding 
 
Lines 120.20-122.6 – VOIP 
 
Lines 122.7 – Small Cell 
Siting Task Force 
 
Lines 123.24-128.5 – 
Broadband Development  

 
House:  4/18/16 – Heard  in House 
Jobs Finance Committee.  Amended 
and passed to Ways & Means 
Committee. 
 
4/21/16 – Heard in House Ways & 
Means Committee.  Amended into HF 
3931.  Passed.  Sent to House Floor. 
. 
4/27/16 – Supplemental jobs, 
environment & agriculture policy 
budget bill passed on House Floor;  
 
Senate:  4/18/16 – Broadband Article 
heard in Senate Finance Committee.  
Laid on the table for potential inclusion 
in Omnibus Finance Bill. 
 
4/21/16 – Broadband Article 
incorporated into SF 2356.  This bill 
will be available on line on Monday 
4/25. 
 
4/28/16 – SF 2356/HF 2749 omnibus 
supplemental appropriations bill 
passed on Senate Floor; article 5 
(Broadband)  

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2016&number=SF2356
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2749&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF3931&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 6 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2015 REGULAR SESSION BILLS 

 
1 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROPRIATING MONEY FOR 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS AID TO 
LIBRARIES 
 

 
S.F. No. 437– Schmit  
 

 
 

 

 
2 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
EXPANDING THE EXEMPTION FOR 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT  
 

 
S.F. No. 1186 – Koenen. 
 

 
H. F. 53– Davids. 
 

 
House: Heard and laid over in the 
House Tax committees. 
 
Senate:  Heard in Senate Tax Reform 
division and laid over. 
 
Included in Senate Omnibus Tax bill.  
Still in Conference Committee 
 

 
3 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROPRIATING MONEY FOR 
BROADBAND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT, 
PROGRAM DELIVERY, AVAILABILITY 
MAPPING AND DATA COLLECTION 
 

 
S.F. No. 438– Schmit; Sparks and 
Dahms  
 

 
 

 

 
 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF437
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1186
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0053&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF438


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 7 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

4 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROPRIATING $100 MILLION TO THE 
BORDER-TO-BORDER BROADBAND 
ACCOUNT 

 
S.F. No. 439– Schmit; Tomassoni; 
Sparks; Dahms and Westrom 
  
 

 
H. F. 556– Johnson, S.; 

Simonson and Metsa. 
  
 

 

 
5 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROPRIATING $50 MILLION TO THE 
BORDER-TO-BORDER BROADBAND 
ACCOUNT 

 
S.F. No. 1260– Gazelka, Saxhaug.  
 

 
H. F. 593– Kresha; 

Johnson, S.; Backer; 

Nornes and Urdahl.  (2-

5-15) 
 

 
House:  Heard in House Greater MN 
Economic & Workforce Dev Policy, 
passed 
 
Heard in House Job Growth & Energy 
Affordability Policy & Finance comm., 
laid over for possible inclusion in 
omnibus funding bill. 
 

 
 
 

6 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
VOIP BILL- INCLUDES MACTA 
AMENDMENT 
 

 
S.F. No. 895– Sparks; Dahms; 
Eken and Nelson  
 

 
H. F. 776– Sanders; 

Atkins; Kresha and 
Hoppe.  
 

 
House:  Heard in House Commerce, 
passed to House Jobs Finance 
Committee 
 
Included in House Omnibus Jobs 
Finance budget bill, with MACTA 
amendment. 
 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF439
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0556&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1260
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0593&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF895
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0776&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 8 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

Not included in final 2015 Jobs bill. 
 
Senate:  Heard in Senate Jobs, 
Agriculture & Rural Dev committee – 
language was amended into 
MTA/Century Link bill – SF 736.  Sent 
to Senate Finance committee.  
 
VoIP provisions deleted from SF 736 in 
the Senate Environment, Economic  
Development & Agriculture Finance 
bill.  
 
2016 - Still in Committee. 

 
 

7 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
CLARIFYING DEFINITION OF RETAIL 
SALES AS IT RELATES TO FIBER OPTIC 
AND COMMUNICATION CABLE 
 

 
S.F. No. 1283– Ortman, Senjem, 
Thompson  
 

 
H. F. 862– Hoppe.  
 

 
 

 
8 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 

 
BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT AND BONDING 
AUTHORITY 
 

 
S.F. No. 1101– Schmit. 

 
H. F. 1900– Simonson, 

Lien 
 

 

 
9 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1283
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0862&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1101
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1900&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 9 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DEPT. OF COMMERCE POLICY BILL 
 

 
S.F. No. 1862- Sparks 

 
H. F. 1558– Kresha, S. 

Johnson, Hoppe 

 
Not heard in either body before policy 
deadlines. 
 

  
10 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
LOCAL REFERENDA RELATED TO 
SPENDING MUST BE HELD IN 
NOVEMBER 

 
S.F. No. 1711- Kiffmeyer 

 
H. F. 922– Drazkowski, 

Lucero 
 

 
House:  Heard in House Government 
Operation & Elections Policy, passed 
to House State Government Finance. 
 
Heard in House State Government 
Finance, passed to House Education 
Finance. 
 
Included in House Omnibus Property 
Tax Division report.  
 
Included in House Tax bill in 
Conference Committee. 
 
2016 – Still in conference Committee. 
 
Senate:  Not heard. 
 

  
11 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
REMOVING AUTHORITY FOR 
MUNICIPAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
 

 
S.F. No. 1800 -Schmit 

 
 

 
Senate:  Language amended into the 
MTA/Century Link bill in the Senate – 
SF 736.  Passed to Senate Finance 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1862
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1558&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1711
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0922&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1800


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 10 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee. 
 

 
12 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
GENERAL FUND GRANT TO LEACH 
LAKE OJIBWE FOR WIRELESS 
BROADBAND  
 

 
S.F. No. 1950- Saxhaug  
 

 
H. F. 2105- Persell 

 
 

 
 

 
 

13 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
APPROIPRIATING $2.4 MILLION FROM 
THE BORDER-TO-BORDER 
BROADBAND FUND FOR A 
DEMONSTRATION PROJECT 
 

 
S.F. No. 2006- Anderson  
 

 
H. F. 2123- McDonald  

 
 

 
House:  Heard in House Job Growth & 
Energy Affordability Policy and Finance 
committee, laid over for possible 
inclusion in omnibus bill.  
 
Included in House Jobs Finance 
omnibus budget bill, $2 million  
 
Not included in final 2015 Jobs 
Omnibus bill. 
 
Senate:  Not heard. 
 

 
14 BILL DESCRIPTION SENATE HOUSE COMMENTS/NOTES 
 
OMNIBUS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, 
HOUSING & ENERGY BUDGET BILL 

 
S.F. No. 2101- Tomassoni 
 

 
H. F. 843- Garofalo  

 

 
House:  Provisions of interest to 
MACTA 

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF1950
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2105&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF2006
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2123&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls89&session_number=0&session_year=2015&number=SF2101
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0843&version=latest&session=89&session_number=0&session_year=2015


MACTA 
 

2015-16 SESSION 
TRACKING LIST 

 
Current as of 5/6/2016 

 
Prepared by the Legislative Department of McGrann Shea Carnival Straughn & Lamb, Chartered 

 

Page 11 of 11– 784464.DOCX 
 
 
 
 
 

   $2 million for a broadband 
demonstration grant project 
(see #13 above) 

 $8 million funding for border-to-
border broadband development 
grants 

 Funding for the Office of 
Broadband 

 VoIP deregulation, including 
MACTA amendment (see #7 
above) 
 

 
Senate: 

 $17 million funding for border-
to-border broadband 
development grants 

 Funding for the Office of 
Broadband Development 

 Does not include VoIP 
deregulation bill or MTA bill.  
 

 



1 
 

 
Before the 

Federal Communications Commission 
Washington, DC 20554 

 
 

In the Matter of 
 
Promoting the Availability of Diverse and  
Independent Sources of Video Programming 
 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
 
 

 
 
MB Docket No. 16-41 
 
 
 

COMMENTS OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS OFFICERS AND ADVISORS IN RESPONSE TO  

NOTICE OF INQUIRY  
 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
 The National Association of Telecommunications Officers and Advisors (“NATOA”) 

submits these comments in response to the Notice of Inquiry (“NOI”), released February 19, 

2016 in the above-entitled proceeding.1 

 NATOA’s membership includes local government officials and staff members from 

across the nation whose responsibility is to develop and administer communications policy and 

the provision of advanced communications services for the nation’s local governments. 

II. DISCUSSION 

  While the focus of the NOI is primarily on the carriage practices of cable operators and 

multichannel video programming distributors (“MVPDs”) and how those practices impact 

independent video programmers, the Commission also seeks comment on how MVPDs treat 

public, education, and government (“PEG”) programming.  More specifically, comment is 

                                                           
1 In the Matter of Promoting the Availability of Diverse Programming and Independent Sources of Video 
Programming, Notice of Inquiry, MB Docket No. 16- 41 (rel. Feb. 18, 2016)(“NOI”). 



2 
 

sought “on MVPDs’ practices with respect to making PEG programming information available 

to subscribers.”2 

 NATOA and PEG programmers nationwide have long voiced their concerns with how 

MVPDs carry PEG channel programming.  For example, as pointed out in the NOI, petitions for 

declaratory ruling were filed with Commission back in 2009 challenging AT&T’s method of 

delivering PEG programming through its U-verse system, including its failure to pass through 

closed captioning contained in PEG programs.3  PEG programmers strive to meet growing 

demands for local programming available on multiple platforms, including cable, online, 

portable devices, social media, and on-demand viewing.  It is imperative that those channels 

have the same signal quality, accessibility, functionality, and placement equivalent to that 

accorded all commercial channels carried on their systems – and delivered to subscribers with no 

extra charges to receive them.   

 Perhaps the number one complaint by many PEG operators is the failure to have their 

programming information listed in electronic or interactive programming guides.  For example, 

Capital Community Television, which provides PEG programming in Salem, OR and 

surrounding areas, states: “The number one request from our community is to have our listings 

on the IPG.”4  Likewise, Easton Community Access Television, which operates a PEG station in 

Easton, MA, declares that its “greatest hurdle in developing and retaining viewership is our 

inability to list programs on the IPG.”5  What is particularly disturbing about the lack of 

providing PEG programming information is that there does not appear to be a technical reason 

                                                           
2 Id. at ¶ 21.   
3 Id. at fn 40. 
4 Comments of Capital Community Television at 2 (filed March 29, 2016).           
5 Comments of Easton Community Access Television at 1 (filed March 29, 2016).  See also Comments of 
Chelmsford TeleMedia at 1 (filed March 29. 2016)(“not being included in the cable provider guide adversely affects 
many in our community”). 



3 
 

for doing so – a fact underscored by the availability of such information by one provider in a 

community, but not by another.6   

 Recently, a new issue concerning the carriage of PEG programming has arisen that 

involves the use of Cablevision’s new Multi-Room DVR and Multi-Room DVR Plus services.  

These services, which provide for the storage of recorded programs on remote servers rather than 

on the hard drive in a set top box, record any programming in a customer’s subscription except 

Interactive channels, Music Choice, Pay Per View, Video On Demand, and Public, Education, 

and Government programs.  PEG channels must be included on cable operators and MVPDs 

new and future platforms as new innovations and technologies are developed.  PEG program 

must be able to be listed, navigated, searched, recorded, and viewed by subscribers in the same 

ways that broadcast and commercial channels are available. We look forward to hearing from 

Cablevision why PEG programming is subject to this recording exclusion.  

III. CONCLUSION  

 As this proceeding moves forward, NATOA and its members stand ready to assist the 

Commission in crafting remedies to address these and other carriage problems facing PEG 

operators.    

        Respectfully submitted, 

         

        Steve Traylor 
        Executive Director 
        NATOA 
        3213 Duke Street, #695 
        Alexandria, VA 22314 
        (703) 519-8035 
                                                           
6 It is our understanding that in Howard County, MD, Verizon carries no PEG channel information on its onscreen 
program guide while Comcast carries such information for community college and government channels, but not for 
public access or Board of Education channels.     



1 

Before the 
Federal Communications Commission 

Washington, DC 20554 
 

 

In the Matter of                                                                ) 
                                                                                             )                      MB Docket No. 16-41 
Promoting the Availability of Diverse and                    ) 
Independent Sources of Video Programming              ) 
 

REPLY COMMENTS OF THE MINNESOTA ASSOCIATION OF  
COMMUNITY TELECOMMUNICATIONS ADMINISTRATORS  

IN RESPONSE TO NOTICE OF INQUIRY 
 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Minnesota Association of Community Telecommunications Administrators (MACTA) submits these 

reply comments in response to the Notice of Inquiry (“NOI”), released February 19, 2016 in the above-

entitled proceeding.  MACTA is a Minnesota non-profit association, representing more than 100 

Minnesota cities and townships in matters related to cable television franchising; public, educational 

and government access programming; broadband development; and telecommunications.  MACTA 

works closely with the League of Minnesota Cities and is a state chapter of the National Association of 

Telecommunications Officers and Advisors (NATOA). 

 

II. DISCUSSION 

The focus of our reply comments pertain to the treatment of public, educational and government (PEG) 

programming by multichannel video programming distributors (MVPDs), specifically in respect to how 

MVPDs make PEG programming information available to subscribers.   MACTA concurs and supports the 

initial comment filing by NATOA, including the following statement: 



“PEG channels must be included on cable operators and MVPDs new and future platforms as new 
innovations and technologies are developed. PEG program must be able to be listed, navigated, 
searched, recorded, and viewed by subscribers in the same ways that broadcast and commercial 

channels are available.” 

 
Electronic programming guides (EPGs) have become the preferred choice of how most subscribers in 

today’s market navigate and decide what program(s) they have the ability to watch.    To exclude PEG 

programming from how MVPDs treat the listing of commercial channels is essentially sentencing the 

PEG channels to cable Siberia.    

 

III. CONCLUSION 

MACTA respectfully requests the Commission to ensure MVPDs treat PEG programming channels in the 

same, equitable manner as the companies treat all commercial programming channels on their 

respective systems.   

         

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

                     Mike Reardon 
       MACTA 

        4248 Park Glen Road 
              Minneapolis, MN 55416 

                     (952) 928-4653 













QCCCC Agenda Item 

4.3.1 Operations Report 

 

May 5, 2016 

To:  Karen George, Executive Director  

From: Katherine Lenaburg, Operations Manager  

Subject:  Operations Update 

 
 
The mobile production van was active this month with the spring sports kick off. Our plans 
include baseball, softball, and boys and girls lacrosse games in our coverage area. Our 
crews were out at the high schools during afternoon practice to interview coaches and 
athletes for “In The Game” which we play back at half-time during our games. 
 
We also used the van to cover the Anoka County LE Reserve Graduation ceremony. We 
are making plans to cover the graduations in our area as well as community events, 
parades, and festivals.  
 
We worked with the University of Minnesota Master Gardner’s Anoka County extension 
continues and we produced a show called “In The Garden: Rain Gardens”. This is an 
example of one of our successful facilitated access partnerships. 
 
Our regular monthly programs produced include: “News and Views”, “The District Court 
Show”, “The Chamber Show”, and “It’s Your History”. We worked on “The Sheriff’s Show” 
and “The Local Show”- both will be completed next month. A new episode of “The Grid” 
was produced as well.  
 
It is also the time of year to enter our local programming into award competitions. Last 
month we completed entries into the Northern Lights competition, put on by MACTA and 
this month we completed the NATOA and ACM entries.  
  
QCTV also produced city meetings in our four cities as well as District 11 School Board 
meeting and the cable commission meeting. 
 
 
 
 



In promoting QCTV, we produced a “What’s New at the Q” promo as well as four spring      
“Slow TV’s”. We updated some local spring shots for our website. We also color corrected 
some shots of our four cities and put those photos on the Rezuna so the cities can use 
them as they see fit. For our live van shoots, we produced 30 second promos and a graphic 
for each event that says “Event Coming Soon”. 
 
Under the employee development category, Taylor Johnson, our mobile production 
coordinator attended the NAB conference.   
  
 
Action: None 
 

 

 



QCCCC Agenda Item 

4.3.2 Technology Report 

 

 

May 2, 2016 

To:  Karen George, Executive Director  

From: Steve Ulrich  

Subject:  April 2016 Technology Report  

 
 
 
 
Equipment Issues: 
 
QCTV Equipment 
 
• Installed new Watchguard firewall appliance and configured. 
• Worked with Verus to resolve proxy issue affecting QCTV.org when viewed 

inside the firewall.  
• Matrox converter for Anoka Bulletin Board developed a vertical jitter. A 

warranty replacement resolved the problem. 
• Scorebox modem not working. Replaced defective socket. 
 
Comcast: 
 
• Comcast successfully activated the HD channel, 859, on April 4. In the 

process they introduced some channel mapping issues that effected channels 
15, 16, 18 & 19 in all cities. These issues were subsequently resolved. 

 
• Channel 18, the School District channel, experienced a no video condition on 

4/18 & 4/19. Comcast was able to resolve this late on 4/19. 
 
City Issues 
 
• Anoka live audio not working. Found defective jack and replaced. 
• Anoka DTA not receiving government channels. This was caused by a 

Comcast mapping problem. It was resolved about a week later.  



• Andover DTA not receiving government channels. This was caused by a 
Comcast mapping problem. It was resolved about a week later. 

 
Web Site: 
 

• There is an ongoing issue with the video lists not populating correctly and 
in a timely manner. The vendor, Bizzyweb, has been unable to resolve 
this. 

 
• Several web outages were experienced this month along with generally 

slow response times. The vendor has been apprised but has taken no 
discernable action. 

 
April Projects: 
 
• HD Channel  
• Add Games to store. 
• Update Active Directory server. Install new RAID array. 

 
 
 
May Planned Projects: 
 
• Continue to add Games to store 
• Internal web project 
• Replace network switches 
• Complete studio wiring. 
 
Ongoing Projects: 
 
• NAS file maintenance. 
• Equipment documentation. 
• Database maintenance 
 
Action: None. 

 

 

 



1 
 

Andover Channel & Web Statistics 
April 2016 

 
Playback: 

 
Total Runs:          1720                                          
Total Time:        670.35   
Saturation:          93.1%    

Shows: 
 

New Shows:              8                                                     
New Time             5.84 
All Shows                 20                      
All Time:              10.44 

Bulletin Board: 
 

Total Hours:        49.65     
Saturation            6.9% 
New Andover         81         
New All Cities      476           
                

Web Hits: 
 

Page Hits:              144           
         
See separate report for 
full details 

 
 

Shown In Multiple Cities 
3/4/2016 News & Views - March 2016 1.0000 
4/1/2016 News and Views - April 2016  1.0000 

1/15/2016 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 0.9678 
2/22/2016 QCCC 2-18-2016 0.2353 
4/21/2016 QCCC 04-21-2016 0.7744 
3/25/2016 The Sheriff Show April - May 2016 0.4983 

 
 

 

Bulletin Board
7%

City Council
18%

Informational
2%

News & Views
28%

Park & Rec
9%

Planning
8%

PSA
1%

Public Safety Show
15%

QCCC
5%

Sheriff Show
7%

Category

Bulletin Board City Council Informational News & Views Park & Rec

Planning PSA Public Safety Show QCCC Sheriff Show



2 
 

 
 
Detail 
 

Title Event Date Category 
Length-

d Runs Total-d 
Andover City Council Meeting 04-05-2016 4/5/2016 City Council 1.8500 44 81.4000 
Andover City Council Meeting 3-15-2016 3/15/2016 City Council 0.7081 23 16.2853 
Andover City Council Meeting 04-19-2016 4/19/2016 City Council 0.7300 42 30.6600 
A Greener Read - Recycling 01-07-2015 1/7/2016 Informational 0.0519 148 7.6878 
Meet Brian Kraabel 7/17/2014 Informational 0.0189 65 1.2278 
Meet Kameron Kytonen 7/17/2014 Informational 0.0272 39 1.0617 
Meet Brett Angell 7/17/2014 Informational 0.0281 24 0.6733 
Meet Dave Carlberg 7/17/2014 Informational 0.0256 24 0.6133 
News & Views - March 2016  ** 3/4/2016 News & Views 1.0000 16 16.0000 
News and Views - April 2016  ** 4/1/2016 News & Views 1.0000 98 98.0000 
Andover News & Views - April 2016  4/1/2016 News & Views 0.2628 327 85.9283 
Andover Park and Recreation Meeting 3-17-2016 3/17/2016 Park & Rec 0.5394 28 15.1044 
Andover Park and Recreation Meeting 04-07-2016 4/7/2016 Park & Rec 0.6147 84 51.6367 
Andover Planning 01-13-2016 1/25/2016 Planning 0.5000 43 21.5000 
Andover Planning and Zoning Commission 4-12-2016 4/12/2016 Planning 0.5897 68 40.1011 
Mayor Trude Water Challenge PSA 4/4/2016 PSA 0.0194 329 6.3972 
Public Safety Talk - January 2016  ** 1/15/2016 Public Safety  0.9678 112 108.3911 
Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 2/22/2016 QCCC 0.2353 80 18.8222 
Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016  ** 4/21/2016 QCCC 0.7744 22 17.0378 
The Sheriff Show April - May 2016  ** 3/25/2016 Sheriff Show 0.4983 104 51.8267 
** Shown In Multiple Cities   10.4417 1720 670.3547 

      
  Total Programming Hours: 670.3547 

  Total Bulletin Board Hours: 49.6453 
  Total Runs: 1720 
  April Total Time: 720 

 
 



1 
 

Champlin Channel & Web Statistics 
April 2016 

 
Playback: 
 
Total Runs:          1241                    
Total Time:        646.34 
Saturation:          89.8% 

Shows: 
 
New Shows:               7                      
New Time              4.86 
All Shows:                 15                                            
All Time                10.52 

Bulletin Board: 
 
Total Hours:         73.66 
Saturation:           10.2% 
New Champlin:        85 
New All Cities:        476 

Web Hits: 
 
Page Hits:            188  
 
See separate report for 
full details 

 
 

Shared With Multiple Cities 
3/4/2016 News & Views - March 2016 1.0000 
4/1/2016 News and Views - April 2016 1.0000 

1/15/2016 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 0.9678 
4/21/2016 Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016 0.7744 
2/22/2016 Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 0.2353 

   
 
 

 
 

Bulletin Board
15%

City Council
13%

EDA-EDC
5%

ERC
14%

Fire Board
7%

News & Views
42%

Park & Rec
4%

Category

Bulletin Board City Council EDA-EDC ERC Fire Board News & Views Park & Rec



2 
 

 
Detail 
 

Show ID Title Event Date Category Length-d Runs Total-d 
5534 Champlin City Council Meeting 03-28-2016 3/28/2016 City Council 1.1831 41 48.5053 
5572 Champlin City Council Meeting 04-11-2016 4/11/2016 City Council 0.3167 45 14.2500 
5612 Champlin EDA & City Council Meeting 04-25-2016 4/25/2016 EDA-EDC 1.1211 16 17.9378 
5533 Champlin EDA 03-28-2016 3/28/2016 EDA-EDC 0.0494 86 4.2522 
5406 Champlin ERC Meeting 02-01-2016 2/1/2016 ERC 0.7128 93 66.2883 
5585 Anoka-Champlin Fireboard 04-13-2016 4/13/2016 Fire Board 0.7978 44 35.1022 
5490 News & Views - March 2016 ** 3/4/2016 News & Views 1.0000 14 14.0000 
5548 News and Views - April 2016 ** 4/1/2016 News & Views 1.0000 93 93.0000 
5546 Champlin News & Views - April 2016 4/1/2016 News & Views 0.2375 399 94.7625 
5456 Champlin Park and Recreation Meeting 2-16-2016 2/16/2016 Park & Rec 0.1656 101 16.7211 
5597 Champlin Planning Commission Meeting 04-18-2016 4/18/2016 Planning 0.6147 42 25.8183 
5524 Champlin Planning Commission 03-21-2016 3/21/2016 Planning 1.3417 53 71.1083 
5350 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 ** 1/15/2016 Public Safety 0.9678 111 107.4233 
5604 Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016 4/21/2016 QCCC 0.7744 24 18.5867 
5466 Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 ** 2/22/2016 QCCC 0.2353 79 18.5869 

 ** Shared With Multiple Cities   10.5178 1241 646.3431 
       

   Total Programming Hours: 646.3431 
   Total Bulletin Board Hours: 73.6569 
   Total Runs: 1241 
   April Total Time: 720 

 
 
 



1 
 

Anoka Channel & Web Statistics 
April 2016 

 
Playback: 
 
Total Runs           876                                                    
Total Time:        651.2 
Saturation:        90.4 % 

Shows:  
 
New Shows              6                
New Time:            6.56 
All Shows:               15                                                    
All Time:               15.2  
    

Bulletin Board: 
 
Total Hours          68.8   
Saturation:           9.6%    
New Anoka:             89      
New All Cities:       476 

Web Hits: 
 
Page Hits:             177 
                                 
See separate report for 
full details 

 
 

Shared With Multiple Cities 
4/13/2016 Anoka-Champlin Fireboard  04-13-2016 0.7978 
3/4/2016 News & Views - March 2016 1.0000 
4/1/2016 News and Views - April 2016 1.0000 

1/15/2016 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 0.9678 
4/21/2016 Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016 0.7744 
2/22/2016 Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 0.2353 
3/25/2016 The Sheriff Show April - May 2016 0.4983 

 
 

 

Bulletin Board
10%

City Council
17%

Fire Board
4%

HRA
9%

News & Views
20%

Planning
22%

Public Safety Show
10%

QCCC
3%

Sheriff Show
5%

Category

Bulletin Board City Council Fire Board HRA News & Views Planning Public Safety Show QCCC Sheriff Show



2 
 

Detail 
 

Show ID Title Event Date Category Length-d Runs Total-d 
5523 Anoka City Council Meeting 03-21-2016 3/21/2016 City Council 1.1586 21 24.3308 
5596 Anoka City Council Meeting 04-18-2016 4/18/2016 City Council 1.4564 31 45.1481 
5554 Anoka City Council Meeting 04-04-2016 4/4/2016 City Council 1.1322 48 54.3467 
5585 Anoka-Champlin Fireboard  04-13-2016 ** 4/13/2016 Fire Board 0.7978 35 27.9222 
5515 Anoka HRA Meeting 3-14-2016 3/14/2016 HRA 1.0806 32 34.5778 
5573 Anoka HRA Meeting 04-11-2016 4/11/2016 HRA 0.6153 44 27.0722 
5490 News & Views - March 2016 ** 3/4/2016 News & Views 1.0000 11 11.0000 
5548 News and Views - April 2016 ** 4/1/2016 News & Views 1.0000 67 67.0000 
5545 Anoka News & Views - April 2016 4/1/2016 News & Views 0.2167 309 66.9500 
5485 Anoka Planning Commission 3-2-2016 3/2/2016 Planning 1.1092 12 13.3100 
5561 Anoka Planning Commission 04-05-2016 4/5/2016 Planning 3.1575 46 145.2450 
5350 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 ** 1/15/2016 Public Safety  0.9678 74 71.6156 
5604 Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016 ** 4/21/2016 QCCC 0.7744 14 10.8422 
5466 Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 ** 2/22/2016 QCCC 0.2353 53 12.4697 
5531 The Sheriff Show April - May 2016 ** 3/25/2016 Sheriff Show 0.4983 79 39.3683 

 ** Shared With Multiple Cities   15.2000 876 651.1986 
       

   Total Programming Hours: 651.1986 
   Total Bulletin Board Hours: 68.8014 
   Total Runs: 876 
   April Total  Hours: 720 

 



1 
 

Ramsey Channel & Web Statistics 
April 2016 

 
Playback: 

 
Total Runs:          688             
Total Time:      662.35 
Saturation:       91.9% 

Shows: 
 
New Shows:               7                             
New Time:               8.3  
All Shows                 14                                      
All Time:              14.59 
 

Bulletin Board: 
 
Total Hours:       57.64    
Saturation:          8.1% 
New Ramsey:        85          
New All Cities:     476 

Web Hits: 
 
Total Hits:              191        
 
See separate report for 
full details. 

 
 
 
Shared With Multiple Cities 
3/4/2016 News & Views - March 2016  1.0000 
4/1/2016 News and Views - April 2016 1.0000 
1/15/2016 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 0.9678 
4/21/2016 Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016 0.7744 
2/22/2016 Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 0.2353 
3/25/2016 The Sheriff Show April - May 2016 0.4983 

 
 

 

Bulletin Board
8%

City Council
29%

News & Views
15%Park & Rec

4%

Planning
23%

Public Safety Show
11%

QCCC
4%

Sheriff Show
6%

Category

Bulletin Board City Council News & Views Park & Rec Planning Public Safety Show QCCC Sheriff Show



2 
 

 
 
Detail 
 
 

Show 
ID Title Event Date Category Length-d Runs Total-d 

5614 Ramsey City Council Meeting 04-26-2016 4/26/2016 City Council 1.4992 16 23.9867 
5527 Ramsey City Council Meeting 03-22-2016 3/22/2016 City Council 1.9031 45 85.6375 
5582 Ramsey City Council Meeting 04-12-2016 4/12/2016 City Council 1.8828 53 99.7872 
5490 News & Views - March 2016 ** 3/4/2016 News & Views 1.0000 14 14.0000 
5548 News and Views - April 2016 ** 4/1/2016 News & Views 1.0000 77 77.0000 
5547 Ramsey News & Views - April 2016 4/1/2016 News & Views 0.2586 83 21.4647 
5506 Ramsey Park and Recreation 03-10-2016 3/10/2016 Park & Rec 0.2989 41 12.2544 
5587 Ramsey Park and Recreation Meeting 4-14-2016 4/14/2016 Park & Rec 0.3386 43 14.5603 
5491 Ramsey Planning Commission 3-3-2016 3/3/2016 Planning 1.4008 23 32.2192 
5564 Ramsey Planning Commission 04-07-2016 4/7/2016 Planning 2.5375 52 131.9500 
5350 Public Safety Talk - January 2016 ** 1/15/2016 Public Safety 0.9678 84 81.2933 
5604 Quad Cities Cable Commission 04-21-2016 ** 4/21/2016 QCCC 0.7744 17 13.1656 
5466 Quad Cities Cable Commission 2-18-2016 ** 2/22/2016 QCCC 0.2353 56 13.1756 
5531 The Sheriff Show April - May 2016 ** 3/25/2016 Sheriff Show 0.4983 84 41.8600 

  ** Shared With Multiple Cities     14.5953 688 662.3544 
       

   Total Programming Hours: 662.3544 
   Total Bulletin Board Hours: 57.6456 
   Total Runs: 688 
   April Total Time: 720 

 
 
 



1 
 

Community Channel 
April 2016 

 
 

Playback: 
 
Total Runs:           1003                           
Total Time:         671.84 
Saturation:         93.3 % 

Shows:       
 
New Shows             31                                                          
New Time:          22.82 
All Shows:              116  
All Time:              90.59 
 

Bulletin Board: 
 
Total Hours          48.16   
Saturation:            6.7% 
New Bulletins         68 
All Bulletins          476                       

Web Hits: 
 
Sessions:           1403         
 
See separate report for 
full details     
 

 
 

 
 

• Detail available upon request 

Access
1%

Bulletin Board
7%

Chamber Report
4%

District Court Show
2%

Event
1%

Games
42%

Garden Talk
4%

Informational
1%

It's Your History
2%

Library
3%

Live & Local
3%

Local Show
2%

LW…

News & Views
9%

Public Safety Show
1%

QCRx
1% Religious

5%

Sheriff Show
2%

Slow TV
5%

The Grid
3%

Townfolk
1%

Category

Access Bulletin Board Chamber Report District Court Show Event Games

Garden Talk Informational It's Your History Library Live & Local Local Show

LWV News & Views Public Safety Show QCRx Religious Sheriff Show

Slow TV The Grid Townfolk



Page 1 of 2 
 

Web Statistics 
April 2016 

 

Overview  
Sessions 1828 
Users 1162 
Page views 5468 
Pages per Session 2.99 
Average Session 2:38 
Bounce Rate 48.36% 
Percent New Sessions 55.03% 

 
 

Sessions by Browser 
Chrome 795 50.57% 
Safari 493 26.97% 
Internet Explorer 292 15.97% 
Firefox 135 7.39% 
Safari (in-app) 37  2.02% 
Edge 34 1.86% 
Mozilla Compatible 17 0.93% 
Android Browser 11 0.6% 
Amazon Silk 5 0.27% 

 
 

Sessions by Mobile     
iOS 462 68.34% 
Android 202 29.88% 
Windows 9 1.33% 
Total 673   

 
Device Category     
Desktop 1152 63.02% 
Mobile 512 28.01% 
Tablet 164 8.97% 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

224
195 194

162

115

55

45-54 35-44 25-34 55-64 18-24 65+

Sessions By Age

62%

38%

Sessions By Gender

male

female



Page 2 of 2 
 

Page Path Level 1 Page 
Views 

Unique 
Views 

Avg. 
Time 

Bounce 
Rate 

/ 1403 935 96.83 38.92% 

Sports 543 405 156.02 55.39% 

Meeting Categories City Council Meetings 370 259 59.05 51.85% 

QCTV Program Guide 279 175 35.62 33.33% 

Ramsey 191 124 36.46 19.05% 

Champlin 188 139 38.05 61.22% 

Anoka 177 131 42.14 24.14% 

QCTV Community Channel 170 126 47.45 40.00% 

Andover 144 98 48.57 16.22% 

Anoka News & Views – April 2016 118 105 243.52 83.17% 

Products 117 85 42.50 0.00% 

QCTV Programs 85 70 42.59 83.33% 

Show Details 85 63 45.37 82.35% 

Live and Local 77 65 44.42 60.00% 

Meeting Categories Planning Commission 76 57 42.21 0.00% 

Meet the Staff 64 60 185.53 90.00% 

Library 62 54 155.13 88.89% 

Search 57 39 75.10 66.67% 

Events for April 2016 51 38 72.53 25.00% 

Agendas 43 34 109.31 50.00% 

District Court Show 42 34 348.73 68.00% 

Your Story 42 36 31.65 100.00% 

QCTV Community Programs 39 30 23.28 0.00% 

Anoka City Council 4-4-2016 38 29 330.21 0.00% 

 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

April 2016 YouTube Statistics 
 
Total Views:       3059 
Minutes Watched:    18339 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Playback Location Type Watch Time  
(minutes) Views Average View 

(minutes) 
Average %  

Viewed 
You Tube Page 17875 2895 6:10 12% 
Embedded in external website/app 428 125 3:25 16% 
You Tube Channel Page 36 39 0:55 3.1% 

 
 

Device Type Watch time 
 (minutes) Views Average View 

(minutes) 
Average % 

Viewed 
Desktop 8458 1452 5:49:00 11.19 
Mobile 5263 1094 4:48:00 10.97 
Tablet 2490 380 6:33:00 10.29 
TV 1140 76 14:59:00 28.25 
Game Console 927 53 17:29:00 33.79 
Unknown Platform 61 4 15:08:00 20.14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.3
5.8 4.7 5 4.2 4.9 3.5 4.2

16.4
19 17.7

5 4.9 3.5

13–17 18–24 25–34 35–44 45–54 55–64 65+ 13–17 18–24 25–34 35–44 45–54 55–64 65+

F F F F F F F M M M M M M M

Percentage Views By Age & Gender



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Detail – Top 50 
 

Video Watch Time 
(minutes) Views  Avg View 

(minutes) 

Baseball: Champlin Park @ Minnetonka 
 

2,523  
 

 
170  

 

 
14:50 

 

Baseball: Champlin Park @ Osseo 2,046  133  15:22 
Antique Appraisal with Mark F Moran 1,819  167  10:53 
It's Your History - Anoka State Hospital 1,468  210  6:59 
Boys Basketball Mounds View at Champlin Park Section 5AAAA Semifinals 1,225  109  11:14 
02-25-2016 Boys Hockey Maple Grove vs Anoka Section 5AA Championship 1,016  113  8:59 
Wrestling: Champlin Park @ Anoka  765  96  7:58 
It's Your History - Fridley Tornado 719  117  6:08 
Live and Local - Spring Fever 639  118  5:24 
It's Your History - The 1st Minnesota Infantry of the Civil War 497  80  6:12 
Anoka County Sheriff Show - April & May 2016 481  69  6:58 
Champlin Park Cluster Band Concert 422  80  5:16 
Section 7AA Girls Hockey QF - Cloquet-Esko-Carlton @ Andover  406  26  15:37 
Champlin Park Boys Basketball - #25 Mckinley Wright Dunk 1/5/16 341  390  0:52 
Boys Hockey - Andover at Duluth East - Section 7AA QF - 2/16/16 325  56  5:48 
Girls Basketball: Irondale @ Andover 1-19-2016 166  37  4:28 
News and Views - April 2016 165  70  2:21 
Rebel Classic Marching Bands 2014 164  45  3:38 
Girls Hockey: Anoka vs. Spring Lake Park - Section 5AA QF 157  7  22:25 
Let's Go to the Library - Summer Reading 155  35  4:26 
Anoka County Sheriff Show: November/December 2015 144  25  5:45 
02-26-2016 Girls Basketball - Totino Grace vs. Anoka 135  17  7:57 
The Grid - Spring 2016 134  26  5:08 
Let's go to the Library - Show 2 128  6  21:16 
Boys Hockey: Elk River at Andover 1-22-2016 123  23  5:21 
It's Your History - Anoka Post Office 109  22  4:56 
Girls Hockey: Champlin Park @ Centennial - Section 5AA QF 108  16  6:45 
Regan Moves 101  13  7:45 
Anoka County Sheriff Show – August & September 2015 94  21  4:29 
Mayor Trude Water Challenge PSA 84  98  0:51 
League of Women Voters - Caucus: Power Up Your Vote 02-10-2016 73  13  5:38 
Local Show Edition #4 68  53  1:17 
Chamber Report - April 2016 65  10  6:29 
Mayor Trude Water Challenge 60  82  0:43 
The Local Show # 2 HD 52  9  5:45 
Gardening: Theres an App for That! 52  8  6:27 
It's Your History - Laws BBQ 50  17  2:57 
League of Women Voters Candidate Forum - MN Dist. 35 Special Election 49  1  49:24:00 
Best of QCTV 2015 46  12  3:50 
2 Tickets, please 45  11  4:07 
Best of QCTV - Programming Excellence 44  11  4:02 
Anoka County Reserve Graduation 2015 43  9  4:45 
It's Your History - County Fairs 41  4  10:08 
Boys Hockey: Marshall School Duluth @ Champlin Park 39  13  2:57 
Anoka County Sheriff Show - Oct & Nov 2015 37  4  9:22 

javascript:;


Page 3 of 3 
 

It's Your History - Archeology in Anoka County 37  8  4:37 
Anoka County Sheriff Show – March & April 2015 36  10  3:36 
"Live and Local: Wargo Nature Center" 35  6  5:48 
Anoka County Sheriff, James Stuart - Law Enforcement Memorial Speech 34  13  2:35 
Sheriff Show Dec 2014/Jan 2015 31  8  3:52 

 



QCCCC Agenda Item 

5.1  2015 Audit Report 

 

May 12, 2015 

To:  Commissioners  

From: Karen George, Executive Director  

Subject:  2015 Audit Report 

 
The 2015 Audit Report for QCCCC, prepared by HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd., is 
attached for your review. Representatives from HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd., will 
present the audit report.  
 
Action Requested: Accept the 2015 Audit report. 

 







































































































Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission
2015 Audit Review
May 19, 2016
Peggy Moeller, CPA
651.407.5832
pmoeller@redpathcpas.com



Reports Issued

Annual
Financial
Report

Report on
Internal
Control

State
Legal 

Compliance
Report

Communication 
With Those 

Charged With 
Governance

2



Annual Financial Report

3

 Commission’s financial statements
 Independent auditor reports on the fair presentation of the 

financial statements
 “Clean opinion” on the 2015 financial statements
 Statement 1 and 2 reflect effect of implementing GASB 68 

(pensions)



Financial Highlights

4

 General Fund
• Fund balance increased $301,757 during 2015.  

Budget Actual Variance

Revenue $1,373,973 $1,681,816 $307,843

Expenditures 1,813,635 1,380,059 433,576

Increase (decrease) in General Fund balance ($439,662) $301,757 $741,419



Financial Highlights

5

 Revenues
• Franchise Fees ‐ $1,040,623
• PEG Fees ‐ $521,986
• Equipment Grant ‐ $55,045
• Total revenues ‐ $1,681,816

 Expenditures
• Salaries, taxes and benefits, and equipment and capital outlay 

purchases were the largest expenditures.
• Total expenditures $1,380,059



Financial Highlights

6

 General Fund
• For the Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission, the General 

Fund’s fund balance is as follows:

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $6,846

Unassigned 1,734,047
Total $1,740,893



Report on Internal Control

7

 Consideration of internal control as a basis for designing audit 
procedures.  No opinion on internal control.

 No internal control findings in 2015.



State Legal Compliance Report

8

 Required by Minnesota Statute §6.65
 OSA audit guide covers six categories:

1) contracting and bidding (N/A – no applicable contracts)
2) deposits and investments
3) conflicts of interest
4) claims and disbursements 
5)      miscellaneous provisions 
6)      tax increment (N/A)

 No compliance findings



Communication With Those Charged With Governance

9

 Required Communication 
• Audit firm responsibility under U.S. audit standards
• Planned scope and timing of audit
• Significant audit results (implementation of GASB 68 – pensions)
• Difficulties encountered in performing the audit – none
• Corrected and uncorrected misstatements
• Disagreements with management (none)
• Management representations
• Consultations with other auditors
• Other audit findings and issues



QCCCC Agenda Item 

5.2  Fleet Safety Manual 

 

May 12, 2015 

To:  Commissioners  

From: Karen George, Executive Director  

Subject:  Fleet Safety Manual 

 
QCTV maintains two company vehicles: a production truck and a cargo van for 
hauling equipment. Enclosed you will find a draft Fleet Safety Manual for review and 
adoption by the board. The manual was adapted from the City of Andover Fleet 
Manual.  
 
Action Requested: Approve the Fleet Policy Manual 

 



 

Quad Cities  

Cable Communications  

Commission 

 

 

 

(dba) QCTV 

 

Vehicle Safety Manual 

 

Approved: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A joint powers agreement to operate a cable television franchise and local programing organization on 
behalf of the member cities: Andover, Anoka, Champlin, Ramsey. 

 



Section 1: Definitions 

A. Accident – An unplanned or unintended event or series that may: (a) result in 
death, injury, loss of or damage to a system or service; (b) cause environmental 
damage; (c) adversely affect an activity or function. 

B. Aggressive Driving – Driving in a selfish, bold, or pushy manner, without regard for 
the rights or safety of other users of the roadway. 

C. At-Fault Accident – Any accident where the driver is designated as having caused 
the accident or negligently contributed to its occurrence. 

D. Collision – An incident in which the first harmful event involves a motor vehicles 
operation. 

E. Crash – An incident involving one or more motor vehicles in motion. 
F. Defensive Driving – Driving to save lives, time, and money, in spite of the 

conditions around you and the actions of others. 
G. Distracted Driving - Diversion of the driver’s attention from the task of operating a 

motor vehicle by activities, objects, or events inside or outside the vehicle, or by 
factors such as emotional stress or preoccupation. 

H. Incident – An undesired event that did or could have resulted in personal harm or 
property damage, or in any undesirable loss of resources. Includes minor citation, 
at-fault accidents, moderate convictions, and major convictions. 

I. Incident Rate – The number of incidents per some unit of measurement, for the 
purpose of assessing safety performance over time or comparing performance with 
other organizations. 

J. Injury – Physical harm or damage to a person resulting in the marring of 
appearance, personal discomfort, and/or bodily hurt, impairment or death. 

K. Major Conviction – Any citation that involves (1) Driving while intoxicated or while 
under the influence of drugs or alcohol; (2) Failure to stop and report an accident; 
(3) Homicide, manslaughter, or assault arising out of the operation of a motor 
vehicle; (4) Driving while license is suspended or revoked; (5) Reckless driving; (6) 
Speed contest, drag racing, or attempting to elude an officer of the law. 

L. Minor Conviction – Any moving traffic citation unless it qualifies as a moderate 
conviction or a major conviction. This category does not include cases involving (1) 
Motor vehicle equipment, load or size requirements; (2) Improper display, or failure 
to display license plates; (3) Failure to sign or display registration; (4) Failure to have 
in possession a driver’s license. 

M. Moderate Conviction – Citations that involve: (1) possessions of opened container 
or alcoholic beverages. 

N. Motor Vehicle – Any license mechanically or electrically powered devices (except 
one moved by human power), not operated on rails, designed to be operated 
primarily on public streets and roads. Cargo and/or attachments (trailers, etc.) to a 
motor vehicle are considered part of that vehicle. 

O. Passenger – A person, other that the driver of the vehicle, who is in or on a motor 
vehicle.  

P. Preventable Collision – One in which the driver failed to do everything that 
reasonably could have been done to avoid the collision. 



Q. Remedial Training – Training required following an incident to upgrade and renew 
skills and demonstrate proficiency. 

R. Road Rage – A criminal offence in which a vehicle is used as a weapon with intent 
to do harm, or the physical assault of a driver or vehicle. 

 

Section 2: Program Requirements 

A. Scope. QCTV will set forth practices for the safe operation of vehicles owned or 
operated by QCTV. These practices are designed for use by those having the 
responsibility for the administration and operation of motor vehicles as a part of 
organizational operations. 

B. Purpose. The purpose of this Vehicle Safety Manual is to provide employees with 
tools and materials to ensure the safety of all employees who drive vehicles for 
QCTV. Vehicles accidents are costly to QCTV, but more importantly, they may result 
in injury to our employees, volunteers, and occupants of other vehicles or 
pedestrians. It is the driver’s responsibility to operate the vehicle in a safe manner 
and to drive defensively to prevent injuries and property damage. As such, QCTV 
endorses all applicable state motor vehicle regulations relating to driver 
responsibility. QCTV expects each driver to drive in a safe and courteous manner. 
The attitude our drivers take when behind the wheel is the single most important 
factor in driving safely. 

C. Application. This policy applies to the operation of QCTV-owned or leased vehicles, 
whether the vehicle is being driven on organizational business or for personal use; 
and the operation of rental or driver-owned vehicles for organizational purposes. It 
applies to persons working on behalf of QCTV whose job performance requires the 
use of a motor vehicle. 

D. Written Program. QCTV will review and evaluate this policy as needed. This written 
program will be communicated to all personnel. It is designed to establish clear 
goals and objectives. 

E. Responsibilities and Accountabilities. 
a) The QCTV Executive Director has the responsibility to implement this 

vehicle safety manual by: 
i. Directing all supervisors and employees to endorse and comply 

with this policy. 
ii. Identifying and train existing and newly selected fleet operators to 

comply with this policy. 
iii. Ensuring the safe operation of fleet vehicles, in compliance with 

this policy. 
iv. Enforcing compliance with this policy. All presently employed and 

new employees, who drive a QCTV owned or leased vehicle in the 
normal course of their employment, must be trained and in 
compliance with this policy. 

b) QCTV’s Supervisors have the responsibility to:  



i. Identify and train existing and newly selected fleet operators to 
comply with this policy. 

ii. Ensure that all vehicles can be operated safely or are taken out of 
service for repairs. 

iii. Require and enforce compliance with this policy. 
c) QCTV’s Employees have the responsibility to: 

i. Understand their assigned tasks relating to fleet safety. 
ii. Apply the proper training and equipment to safely operate a motor 

vehicle. 
iii. Assist with the identification of vehicle operation problems.  
iv. Comply with the directives of this policy. 
v. Act in compliance with vehicle insurance requirements. 

d) The QCTV Mobile Production Coordinator has the responsibility to: 
i. Train appropriate employees in the QCTV Fleet Safety program 

ii. Track and document all reported vehicle accidents. 
iii. Assist with the identification of preventable and non-preventable 

vehicle accidents, as requested. 
iv. Track and coordinate any necessary repairs to any fleet vehicle. 
v. Ensure the safe operation of all QCTV fleet vehicles. 

F. Drive Recruitment, Selection, and Assessment 

QCTV shall implement a system that recruits and selects drivers to ensure safe 
operation and management of the motor vehicle safety program. 

1. Motor Vehicle Record Annual Review 
a) All full-time and part-time employees of QCTV who operate a QCTV 

owned or leased vehicle should have their motor vehicle record 
checked annually by the Mobile Production Coordinator. All 
applicants hired as vehicle operators will have their motor vehicle 
record checked for patterns of violations or recent violations of 
DWI or DUI prior to operating a QCTV vehicle. 

2. New Driver Selection 
a) Overview 

Employee selection procedures should be designed to evaluate an 
applicant’s experience and potential. Any new applicant hired as an 
operator shall receive a road test on the designated equipment. 

b) New Employee Training 
Basic training for all new drivers shall consist of on the job 
instructions and training with the Mobile Production Coordinator or 
a QCTV Supervisor. A defensive attitude is an important aspect of 
all new hire training. Drivers should believe that vehicle accidents 
are preventable if they take the initiative. Finally, drivers should be 
alert to hazards on the roadway that could cause an accident. New 
drivers should be introduced to an unfamiliar vehicles general 
mechanical operation, safety equipment, emergency kit, and 



accessory application, as well as a review of braking, backing, and 
trailer operation (if applicable).  

3. Monitoring Existing Drivers 
Driver abuse of equipment is another issue to review with existing drivers. 
If repair patterns show a pattern, the driver should receive training in the 
areas in question, such as braking, etc. 

G. Driver Rules 
a) All employees operating QCTV equipment shall comply with the Minnesota 

Motor Vehicle Regulations. 
b) Drivers shall carry their state driver’s license at all time while operating 

motor vehicles.  
c) Safety belts shall be worn at all times by all passengers and by all 

employees where seat belts are provided. No one shall ride in an area of a 
vehicle that does not have the proper restraint devices (i.e. back of the 
production truck, rear of the cargo van). 

d) Drivers shall not consume alcoholic beverages, illegal drugs, or medication 
that may affect driving ability, within 8 hours prior to, or at any time while 
on duty. If an employee is under the influence of drugs or alcohol taken less 
than eight hours prior to their shift, it is the responsibility of that employee 
to call in to work to report an inability to perform their function for that 
shift. 

e) When backing vehicles, there must be a clear view of the area immediately 
to the rear. In vehicles without rear window visibility, the driver shall get 
out of the vehicle and inspect the area to the rear before backing. If a 
second employee is available, that person shall serve as a guide to back up 
the driver. 

f) All doors and compartments should be closed prior to putting the vehicle in 
motion. If a door or compartment needs to be open while the vehicle is in 
motion, the driver should ensure that load is legal and attach a red flag to 
the farthest protruding object on each side or the back of the vehicle. 

g) Employees who operate motor vehicles, either regularly or occasionally are 
required to report any license revocations or suspensions immediately to 
their supervisors. 

h) Reckless or unsafe operation of QCTV vehicles is not permitted. This rule 
shall also apply to private vehicles operated on QCTV property. 

i) Vehicle engines shall not be operating when adding any fuel or engine oil to 
the vehicle. 

j) Employees shall not board or alight from any moving vehicle. 
k) Employees shall not ride on the running boards of any vehicle. 
l) Riding on the side, tailgate, or roof of any vehicle when the vehicle is in 

motion is not allowed. 
m) During periods of limited visibility, or at any time that the windshield wipers 

are in use, headlights should be turned on. 



n) Trailers shall be fastened to hitches, and safety chains shall be secured, as 
required by state law, before moving vehicles. 

o) All items to be transported inside the vehicle that have the potential to 
move (i.e. cameras, keyboards, chairs, scaffolding, etc.) should be secured 
prior to departing. 

p) There should be no more riders in the vehicle than there are proper 
restraint devices. 

q) The key should never be left in the ignition while the vehicle is unattended. 
This includes the QCTV garage. 

r) All QCTV vehicles and exterior compartments should be locked while 
unattended, when not stored in the QCTV garage. 

s) Employees are responsible for any traffic or parking citations they receive 
while operating QCTV vehicles. 

t) QCTV vehicles without proper handicap identification, should not park in 
any handicap parking space unless coordinated with a site director in 
advance. 

u) Headphones or earbuds are not allowed to be worn while operating a 
motor vehicle.  

v) There should be no use of a mobile phone or other cellular device while 
operating a vehicle. 

w) Before leaving the driver’s seat, the vehicles shift selector shall be placed in 
park, and if needed, the parking brake applied. If the vehicle does not have 
a park position, the shift selector shall be placed in neutral and the parking 
brake applied. 

H. Orientation and Training 
A process of orientation and training shall be established in order to ensure safe 
and effective operation of motor vehicles. All new drivers will be trained on the 
vehicle they will be using during their course of work at QCTV. Training will include 
behind the wheel observation. 

 
Section 3: Operational Environment 

A. Vehicle Maintenance and Safety Inspections 
The Mobile Production Coordinator should be consulted regarding the selection, 
purchase and maintenance of QCTV vehicles. Vehicles must be kept in a safe 
condition and provided with necessary safety or emergency equipment. When 
taking out any fleet vehicle, the driver should complete an initial pre-trip 
inspection. 

• Repairs will be done by qualified automotive service personnel. 
• Vehicles will receive regular maintenance based on the manufacture 

recommendations or as maintenance is needed. 
• Vehicles will be maintained based on the miles driven or by calendar time. 

B. Distracted Driving 
Drivers shall not be distracted while driving. This includes refraining from the 
following activities: 



a. Cell phone use 
b. Eating or drinking 
c. Grooming 
d. Smoking 
e. Reading 
f. Use of technology (GPS, computer, MP3, etc.) 

C. Aggressive Driving 
Drivers shall not resort to aggressive driving or road rage under any circumstances. 
Examples of aggressive driving include: 

a. Speeding 
b. Tailgating 
c. Failure to signal a lane change 
d. Running red lights and stop signs 
e. Weaving in traffic 
f. Yelling 
g. Making obscene gestures 
h. Excessive use of horn 

D. Vehicle Emergency Procedure 
When it’s absolutely necessary to stop on a highway or city street in case of an 
emergency, use extreme caution: 

a. Warning signals and lights shall be used. 
b. If a prolong stoppage should occur, traffic cones or triangles should be used 

to give advanced warning to approaching vehicles. 
E. Vehicle Pre-trip Inspection 

Before a QCTV vehicle is driven, a 360-degree pre-trip inspection shall be 
performed. The 360-degree pre-trip inspection includes: 

a. Insure all doors, hatches, and storage areas are closed and secured and 
check each one by hand. 

b. Check for foreign objects around, underneath, and on top of the vehicle. 
c. Secure all items inside of the vehicle and storage areas as to not damage 

interior equipment (monitors, chairs, cables, mice/keyboard’s, etc.). 
d. Insure the tires are properly inflated. 
e. Insure that all exterior lights function properly.  
f. All mirrors must be present, unobstructed, and adjusted to the person 

driving the vehicle. 
g. Windshield wipers must work at all settings. Wiper fluid pump should also 

be tested. 
h. Windows must be secure in good operating condition, and clear of any 

obstructions. 
i. Any loose objects or debris surrounding the driver should be secured as to 

not interfere with the driver’s ability to operate the vehicle. 
j. Any body or mechanical damage should be reported to the Mobile 

Production Coordinator. 
k. Vehicle dash indicators should be checked for any potential problems. 



 

Section 4: Accident Reporting 

A. What to do at the scene of an accident 
Report all vehicle accidents. Collect information using the Accident Kit Card located 
in the glove or center compartment of each vehicle. QCTV will investigate all 
accidents involving QCTV fleet vehicles. The following shall be considered. 

a. It is unlawful to leave the scene of any accident if you are involved in the 
accident, without furnishing your name, address, and vehicle information to 
the other driver. Any hit and run accident, on private or public property, 
should be reported to the local police, sheriff, or state patrol office with 
jurisdiction. 

b. Accidents involving a pedestrian and a QCTV vehicle, or an accident 
involving a QCTV employee who is struck by a vehicle, should also be 
reported to the local police, sheriff, or state patrol office with jurisdiction. 

B. Employee Retraining 
It may be necessary to retrain an employee if they are involved in a severe accident 
or repeated accidents. Retraining with a supervisor or the QCTV Mobile Production 
Coordinator should review the actions leading up to the vehicle accident and how to 
prevent future accidents from occurring. 
 
During training, if vision, hearing, or other health conditions indicate a possible 
deficiency that may affect the safe operation of the vehicle, then an examination 
and evaluation by a medical specialist may be required. 

 

Section 5: Disciplinary Action  

A. Disciplinary action may need to be taken if a QCTV driver is not performing safe 
driving procedures outlined in this policy. Disciplinary action will be conducted by 
that employees supervisor and may include:  

a. Verbal warning 
b. Written warning 
c. Suspension 
d. Termination 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Quad Cities Community Television 

12254 Ensign Ave. N 
Champlin, MN 55316 

 

Authorization for Driver’s License Check 

 

QCTV is obligated to occasionally obtain and review the driver’s license status and record for QCTV 
employees.  This requirement applies to QCTV employees who drive city vehicles as part of their job 
duties or who drive private motor vehicles in the course of performing their duties for QCTV.  This 
authorization form will be provided to a separate agency who will conduct the driver’s license check on 
behalf of QCTV. 

 

This authorization expires one year from the date hereof. 

 

I, _______________________________________________ authorize QCTV 

     (First)                     (Middle)                     (Last) 

                                PLEASE PRINT 

 

to obtain my driver’s license record. 

 

 

Driver’s License Number___________________________________________ 

 

Date of Birth_______________________________ 

 

Signature_______________________________________________________ 

 

Date___________________________________________________________ 



 

 



Quad Cities Community Television 

Acknowledgment of Receipt 

of 

Vehicle Fleet Safety Manual 

 

This is to acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Vehicle Fleet Safety Manual and understand 
that in contains important information on many QCTV general driving safety policies and on my driving 
privileges and obligations as an employee. I acknowledge that I am expected to read, understand, and 
adhere to these policies and will familiarize myself with the material in the manual. Additionally, I agree 
to abide by any new or revised policy.  

I understand that I am governed by the contents of the manual and that QCTV may change, rescind, or 
add to any policies or practices described in this manual from time to time in its sole and absolute 
discretion with or without prior notice. QCTV will advise employees of material changes within a 
reasonable time. 

I further acknowledge and agree that employment with QCTV may be terminated for not abiding by the 
rules and policies set forth in the Vehicle Fleet Safety Manual. 

 

 

__________________________________________________                                ____________________ 

Employee Signature                                                                                                          Date 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Print or Type Name 

 

 

 

Important Note: I understand it is my responsibility to read, understand, and comply with the provisions 
contained in QCTV Vehicle Fleet Safety Manual. If I am unable to understand any part of this manual, I 
will arrange to have it translated or explained to me. I further understand that if I am unable to arrange 
such help, I will immediately notify my supervisor who will make arrangements for needed assistance. 

 

 

 


	Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission May 19, 2016 Agenda
	Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 21, 2016
	Quad Cities Communications Commission Balance Sheet Summary as of March 31, 2016
	Quad Cities Communications Commission Budget vs Actuals: Budget 2016 - FYI 16 P&L
	QCTV Bank Reconciliation March 2016
	Quad Cities Communications Commission Reconciliation Report
	MACTA Capitol Update Report
	QCCCC Agenda Item 4.3 Executive Director's Report
	MACTA 2015-16 Session Tracking List
	MACTA Reply Comments MB Docket No. 16-41
	Comcast Price Changes April 26, 2016
	QCCCC Agenda Item 4.3.1 Operations Report
	QCCCC Agenda Item 4.3.2 Technology Report
	Andover Channel & Web Statistics April 2016
	Champlin Channel & Web Statistics April 2016
	Anoka Channel & Web Statistics April 2016
	Ramsey Channel & Web Statistics April 2016
	Community Channel April 2016
	Web Statistics April 2016
	April 2016 YouTube Statistics
	QCCCC Agenda Item 5.1 2015 Audit Report
	Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission Annual Financial Report December 31, 2015
	Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 2015 Audit Review Presentation
	QCCCC Agenda Item 5.2 Fleet Safety Manual
	Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission (dba) QCTV Vehicle Safety Manual

